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The Honorable Miguel Cardona
Secretary

U.S. Department of Education
400 Maryland Ave, SW
Washington, DC 20202

Dear Secretary Cardona:

We write to request additional information about the U.S. Department of Education’s
(Department) evaluation of applications submitted by institutions of higher education to convert
from proprietary institutions to nonprofit institutions. On May 27, 2021, the Department
submitted a report to Congress entitled “Report on Proprietary Institution Conversions” (Report),
which details the Department’s process for evaluating conversion requests.! We are concerned
these applications are not processed thoroughly in a reasonable time period. The COVID-19
pandemic undoubtedly caused a strain on the Department’s process and led to further delays;
however, we are hopeful these issues can be appropriately remedied.

According to the Report, in September 2018 the Department organized a new workgroup to
handle change in ownership applications (CIO Workgroup).? The CIO Workgroup is responsible
for reviewing all applications from proprietary institutions that seek to be recognized as
nonprofit institutions. Although not explicit, the Report implies that the workgroup is also
responsible for approving all non-conversion change of control applications.

The Report thoroughly describes the process by which the Department staff review change of
control conversion applications. While we appreciate the Department working to improve the
thoroughness of its review, there still appears to be a significant delay in that review. For
example, several anecdotal reports suggest that the Department is spending over a year to
process post-transaction change of control applications. Further, this Spring, an institution saw

L https://www.republicreport.org/wp-content/uploads/2021/06/Report-to-Congress-on-Proprietary-Institution-
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its post-transaction conversion request denied five years after its initial request was submitted to
the Department.

The Department must process all change of control applications, including conversion
applications, within a reasonable time. Forcing institutions to wait for years unnecessarily
impedes their ability to serve students and has a chilling effect on mergers and acquisitions in the
higher education industry.

In order to better assess the Department’s current capacity to process change of control
applications in a timely manner, we request the following information:

1.

In the past three fiscal years, the average length of time taken for the Department to
process fully comprehensive pre-acquisition applications involving a conversion. Please
indicate the number of applications that are still pending, including how long each of
those applications has been pending.

In the past three fiscal years, the average length of time taken for the Department to fully
process comprehensive pre-acquisition applications not involving a conversion. Please
indicate the number of applications that are still pending, including how long each of
those applications has been pending.

In the past three fiscal years, the average length of time taken for the Department to fully
process post-transaction change of control applications involving a conversion. Please
indicate the number of applications that are still pending, including how long each of
those applications has been pending.

In the past three fiscal years, the average length of time taken for the Department to fully
process post-transaction change of control applications not involving a conversion. Please
indicate the number of applications that are still pending, including how long each of
those applications has been pending.

An estimation of the percentage of time each employee of the CIO Workgroup listed in
the Department’s Report spends working on matters relating to the Workgroup.

The number of employees assigned to the CIO Workgroup tasked with reviewing change
in ownership applications on a full-time basis. Please indicate whether either of the two
attorneys assigned to the workgroup work on change in ownership applications on a full-
time basis.

We understand the Department recently began offering abbreviated pre-acquisition
reviews. Please describe why the Department decided to offer this service and how many
institutions have applied for abbreviated pre-acquisition reviews.

Please contact Chance Russell (chance.russell@mail.house.gov) with the Committee Staff and
Kevin O’Keefe (kevin.okeefe@mail.house.gov) with Representative Keller’s staff with any
questions regarding this request. Thank you for your prompt reply to this letter.
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Sincerely,
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Virginia Foxx Fred Keller
Ranking Member Member of Congress
U.S. House Committee on Education and Labor



